1777: The Year of the Hangman – Errata, Addendum and Notes
The Credits: 
The Painting on the cover of the Historical Commentary and Scenarios book was done by E.L. Henry circa 1876, and is hanging in the entrance hall at Cliveden.

The Map: 
You never really know how it’s going to turn out till you get it back from the printer.

Note that there are little red barns in Newark, Wilmington, Philadelphia, Trenton, Milltown (4514) and Pottsgrove (4325).

Burdenstown is the archaic name for Bordentown.  It is Bordentown in the scenarios. 

Village hexes should be treated as clear hexes for all intents and purposes (foraging, movement and combat).  

The three cannons note the locations of Forts Mifflin/Mercer and Fort Billingsport (Billingsfort).

Elkton, Maryland in the scenarios is Head of Elk, Maryland on the game map.

There is an anomaly on the map with regard to hex 4713.  The west branch of the Brandywine appears to flow uphill here.  The slope hex-sides adjoining hex 4713 from hexes 4714, 4814 and 4614 should either be disregarded or considered to originate in the aforementioned hexes.  That is, if moving from hex 4713 into hex 4714 a unit would be moving up slope; the west branch of the Brandywine thus flowing through a ravine.

Unfortunately the contrast between river and creek is not as pronounced as it should be. The Brandywine is a river from Chad's Ford to parts downstream (hexside 4109/4210).
Elizabeth Furnace outside Brickerville: I'd revise the map as follows, another red barn would go in hex 5921, and the hex would become wooded hills (not just wooded). Also, I'd extend the road from Ephrata to include hexes 5821, 5921 and hex 6022 (extending seemingly off map in that direction), possibly adding the village of Brickerville to the last mentioned hex. This was the road leading to Cornwall Furnace and thence to Harris' Ferry (today's Harrisburg).

Units:                                                                                                                                                                                             
Q: What is the rank of "General" Stirn? 
A: Treat Stirn as a Brig. General.

Charts:
Combat Morale Modifiers: The chart on the back Historical Commentary and Scenarios book should list “Staking a Second Round” and Staking a Third Round” as positive modifiers; not negative as it was printed.  Also, note that a wooded hill would have a cumulative effect of being “Defender in Woods” and “Defender in Hills;” that is, it would be +2.  Also, “Defender is up-slope” and “Defender in Hills” are not necessarily mutually exclusive (certainly a defender is already up-slope if he is in a hill, so in this case they would be).  There are some hills that have sloped hex-sides.  In these cases they are not mutually exclusive.  For instance, if a defender in hex 4217 were attacked from hex 4216, he would receive the benefit of the wooded hill (+2) he occupies, and the benefit for being attacked across the intervening up-slope hex-side.  This condition exclusively occurs in The Chester Valley.  

Weather Table:
Q: Does snow restrict the turn to initiative player pulse one only or is there a reaction pulse one as well?                                       
A: The sentence should imply no second pulse reaction move. Snow simply cancels the second pulse as Exhaustion does. The first pulse is conducted normally. In the case of Fog (Snow) there is no Fog effect (it is instead Snow, or no second pulse). In the case of Exhaustion (Snow) there is simply no second pulse. In the case of Snow during Rain turns, again, there is no Rain effect, simply Snow and no second pulse. 

Q: Can 4.A.5 Refouler (Brush Aside) occur during a Deluge turn? The Weather table says that “no unit may attack” but Brush Aside occurs during the movement phase (not the combat phase), and the entire procedure in 4.A.5 does not specifically use the word “attack” nor specifically prohibit this.

A: For simplicities sake No. The weather table should probably have said no "combat" rather than "attack," which would have been more general.

Q: British naval unit question: If no combat can occur during a deluge turn, what happens when the Crown sail unit moves adjacent to an enemy hex? Is naval combat allowed? (since the rules say that they must attack).                                                 
A: If no combat occurs, then movement into a hex that mandates combat must also be prohibited.

Rules:

0.0  INTRODUCTION

0.7 Q: Are all forces on the map obscured? 

A: That's optional. You are limited in the number of units you may obscure by the number of "flag" markers provided in the mix. In other words, you may not use a blank marker for this.

1.0 COMMAND
1.5 Q: Can you deploy two dummies stacked together with one flag?

A: No.  That bit about "using blank markers" is a hold-over that never got edited out of the rulebook. Strike the last sentence of rule 1.5.

1.6 Q: Should OBADs remain hidden from the opponents?

A: Yes. I certainly recommend this. And, in order to discourage peeking I also suggest removing the OBADs from the opposing player's view, to some remote corner of the room. 

1.6.4.1. Q:  In rule 1.64.1 Adding to Columns, do Crown units that have not already moved also need an action chit in order to be picked up?

A: No. 

Just prior to the sentence beginning ... "Whenever a force advanced....insert "Nuance” and begin a new paragraph, italicized.
1.6.4.2. Q: May a column move through a hex it may not stack with, i.e., may a militia unit without a leader present pass 

through a hex containing an identical stack?
A: Yes. Although it may be implied that this should not be the case, since units should automatically constitute a column if occupying the same hex, the obverse is not true if no leader is present that can do this in the fraction of a day the two forces occupy the same hex during movement. These are big hexes and the units rather small in proportion to them. 

4.0 MOVEMENT & COMBAT
4.A.3.b. Q: Do ships/floating batteries block enemy land movement across ferry hexsides they occupy?

A: Absolutely. Ships/Galleys/Floating batteries block the crossing of ferries.

4.A.3.c. Q: What happens if an American division is sitting on a ship, in the middle of being ferried, when the ship is attacked?
A: Cancel the ferry bit and put the land unit back on the side of the river from which it attempted the crossing from. Then resolve the combat (this could result in a land and sea encounter depending on how the hex grid works). If the hex the unit came from is occupied by the enemy then they would surrender.  

4.A.5.b. Q: It seems to us that brushing aside enemy units is too much simple. In particular the English may brush aside the Americans (in field works!) using a stack with one or two dragoons on top. In such a way if the American choose the skirmish chit the dragoon is sure of not receiving any straggler (because having only one strength point it is immune to casualties) hence brushing aside successfully the enemy. If the American choose the defend chit the escalade is usually in favor of the attacker that can concentrate his effort whereas the defender has to cover a lot of terrain given the dire consequences of retreating when totally or partially surrounded. So doing the British is able to compel to retreat also defenders that in case of “normal” attacks would not be retreated on account of the favorable die roll modifiers related to terrain and field works. It seems simpler to win battle brushing aside enemies than attacking them. In some cases only brushing aside the enemy it can be compelled to give ground.
Q: If I entrench Philly with works and occupy it with a morale 3 unit of strength 2, it becomes impregnable!! If all the British forces including the navy attack the best they can do is 4:1 at +1 (assume British BMV is 4.something, USA BMV is 3 + 2(city) +2 (works) -1(strategic morale) =6. The best roll gives a 30% loss to the USA 2 sp unit resulting in no loss, and of course with a morale of 6 the heroic defenders never fail a morale check.                                                                                          
A: I think you found an important glitch. The problem is with: "Note that regardless of the percentage of loss indicated by the CRT, if both forces suffered less than the loss of one real SP, the loss is considered equal." Thus, any unit with a single strength point could always successfully brush aside an enemy force, since it cannot be killed, the loss always being less than 1, thus equal, in which case the active unit wins every time. There should be an exception in the case of small forces that cannot lose a SP because of the nature of the Percentage of Loss vs. Size of Force, wherein the actual percentage of loss should determine the winner of the round of combat or Brush Aside attempt.

4.A.6. The Big Rivers & Chesapeake: It is entirely possible for land units and ships to occupy the same hex if the hex contains land and water.  The ships obviously occupy the water portion of the hex, the infantry the land.  Thus, in the first scenario, Grey’s brigade is on the land in hex 5000, while the two Royal Navy squadrons occupy the water. The southern border of the map, or frame, was purposely drawn with three intrusions.  Use the intrusion immediately below Head of Elk if you think the fleet is a bit crowded in the set-up.

4.A.6.b.1. Q: Can The Heavy Sail counter enter the actual hex with the chevaux de frise?

A:  No. They really did not know where they were, only that they were there, and gave the vicinity a wide berth. 

Q: A strategy question....If I keep the American ships one hex upstream from the Cdf (that is with one clear hex between them and the Cdf) I force the RN Light Sail (the only ones that can cross) to attack at 1 to 2 odds. The only way I can attempt to clear the CdF is if I win the naval battle. Only a die roll of one will result in a victory for the attacker at 1 to 2 odds. Looks like the best way to keep the river closed to the Lobsterbacks to me. 

A: Careful that you are not stacking in river hexes (yes, the batteries may + the US Navy squadron, and that would equal 1 to 2 odds, or 6 to 9). No one said the process would be quick! It is a long game and the Royal Navy will inevitably be successful at eventually rolling the appropriate result...After all it took the real Royal Navy until mid-November (70+ turns!) and they lost a couple of prominent ships doing it. I'd also add that none of the cheveau de frise were broken by sea without the covering forts being taken, and they were taken by land assaults.

4.A.6.e. Q: Is the movement potential of the Pennsylvania floating batteries ever affected by weather?

A: No.
4.A.7.b. Exception: Philadelphia and Reading are the only hexes that may contain an entrenchment and be foraged.

4.A.8. Q: Are fortifications (Entrenchments and Works) limited by the countermix?

A: Yes

Q: The chart and rules state that the initiating player may attempt to entrench. Are there any restrictions on the reacting player doing so as well?

A: No.  Both the initiating and reacting sides may entrench in the first pulse.  

Q: Is it possible to remove entrenchments from the map? If so, must they be occupied for this to occur?  

A: Yes. I was wondering when someone would ask this. Any unit other than dragoons can fill in one level of works per pulse so long as they begin and end that pulse in the hex and do not perform any other function (such as forage, plunder or fight). British units do not need an Action Chit to do this, but may only perform this action in the first pulse of a turn. Rebel units may perform this action in both pulses.

4.A.11.a. Q: Can dragoons reconnoiter? 

A: No. Although I certainly see how they should be allowed to in some manner. For now, however, it is not in the rules.

4.B.1.e. Q: When are obscured units revealed? 

A: During full battles…Certainly. 

Probe vs. skirmish…Only top units in opposing forces (as stated). 

Probe vs. defend…No. 

Assault vs. skirmish…No. 

Escalade…Only those that have been staked and participated in an actual round of combat. 

In all other instances units remain obscured and are only revealed as per Reconnoiter (4.A.11.a). 

Ships and floating batteries cannot be obscured. Land units they engage are not revealed.

4.B.1.e.2. Q: In Assault vs. Skirmish, the attacker is supposed to advance as much of the attacking force as possible. Suppose you have two leaders that can't advance together (say, Greene and Wayne), both having subordinate units. If Wayne advances and Greene doesn't, do Greene's subordinate units stay with Greene, or advance into Wayne's column?

A: Well, let's interpret it literally. In that case Greene advances since he can take more units under command, and all the rest of the units advance and become subordinate to him. His capacity should be enough for even Wayne. If not, Wayne remains behind but as many of his units join Greene as possible.

4.B.2.3. Q: Can the attacker reduce odds during an attack?

A: Yes, but only as a result of an Assault vs. Defend match up. This must be done by brigade/division, according to the position of units on the OBAD, from the lowest number working up, prior to the actual tabulation of odds.  In other words, the attacker may state that he is attacking with only the front three brigades of his four brigade force.  This may be augmented if subsequent rounds are staked.
4.B.2.5. Q: Can you attack at less than 1:4 odds?                                                                                                                        
A: Good question. I’d have to say no, just to keep it simple.

4.B.2.8. Q: Losses are based upon the respective size of the involved forces. Therefore, it might be disadvantageous to attack with a larger force? 

A: Sure, except that this will certainly affect the odds of the actual encounter where all the shooting takes place. Now, I remember this question coming up in playtesting, in that an anomaly appears if you send 12 thousand men against 1 thousand, and for some reason the small force stands the battle. My response was, "don't send a man to do a boy's work." Of course, how do you know how large the opposing force will be? You don't. But in the course of play you'll get pretty good at keeping track of this sort of thing, or what in the parlance of the military is called "gathering" intelligence. 

4.B.3. Q: (Multiple Rounds of Battle) States that players repeat "steps 3 through 10" (Tally Units Strength through Adjust Straggler Index) of the combat sequence for each successive round of combat. Rule 4.B.4.a (Shaken Attackers) States "Leave these units out when re-tabulating the BMD and tallying the strength...for the next round". Do you re-tabulate the BMD (step 2 of the combat sequence) for each successive round of Combat?

A: Good point. There is a contradiction here. I suppose you have to. The BMD could even change for the better (in that a unit with a less morale could have failed the check, improving the lot of the rest). Or, if you don't, rule 4.B.4.a has to be reworded to "leave the shaken units out when re-tabulating odds." I'll stick with changing the former. The BMD does/could change as the chaff blows away. Otherwise, Washington could appeal to valor, have Greene's or Maxwell's be the only unit that stays, but still be stuck with the BMD that included militia.  

Q: If you re-tabulate the BMD after each round of combat, would it affect the number of rounds the attacker 
A: Yes. He may have to stop attacking or may even attack extra rounds as a result of re-tabulation. Essentially staking extra rounds represents the ability to reorganize and throw the men into the breach once again. If you look at the assault on Breeds Hill, I believe the British were repulsed twice but took the position on the third try. So they must have had a BMD of at least 2. The rebels were in works and had some very spirited leadership. So their morale was improved by 2 plus whatever the appeal to valor added. On the other hand, at the battle of Princeton, the Brits made a great attack which caused Cadwalader's Associators to break and run, but Washington rallied the continentals, so the BMD of his force actually improved between rounds. Mahwood's second round was essentially nonplussed, or he became shaken. Washington then attacked him in the reaction phase, sending him packing (two of the three regiments in the brigade shattering, for all intents and purposes a shattered result). The second pulse had Cornwallis showing up, scattering the continentals in a skirmish, who then beat feet with their 2nd pulse reaction move. The caveat in all this is that, you can use the game to explain what happened, but don't expect it to play out that way. 

4.B.4. Q: When a shaken unit is attacked, it automatically retreats afterward?

A: Correct. It "yields the hex" and when the attacking force occupies that hex it is considered to have been pursued one hex. 

4.B.4.c. Q: Assume there is a force with 5 units and in the combat phase 2 of them become shaken. If the force is able to advance after combat, it must leave behind the shaken units. I understand if there is another leader in the force he can stay behind with the shaken units to make a new force. However, if there is only one leader in the force I assume one cannot advance?

A: They could advance by dropping off the shaken units. The only problem lies in the fact that there are two of them, which would create an illegal stack, unless, of course, there were a subordinate leader also in the column who could create his own force of them and he too were left behind. Unfortunately the game doesn't accommodate this too well, as any leader with superior rank should be able to form mini columns, or, illegal stacks should be allowed to exist until the next friendly movement phase, at which time displacement occurs.
4.B.5.c. Q: What is the Army succession of command if both George Washington and Greene are temporarily removed from the game due to adverse results?

A: Next in line would be Sullivan.

Q: How would you recommend handling the potential overstacking situation when George Washington is removed from the battle location due to an adverse result on the appeal to valor table?

A: Movement to Assembly should be sufficient to resolve it in the next movement phase. If the hex that is overstacked is, in fact, the Assembly hex all surrounding hexes in that case, would be eligible to receive violating units. If an overstacked hex is attacked before then, through either refouler or normal combat, only the top most unit is used to determine BMD and strength. But all units would check morale and be used to determine Actual SP losses. In addition, if the top unit becomes Shaken, then all units become Shaken.

4.B.6.b. A defender withdrawing from a hex as a result of Assault vs. Skirmish, it is yielding a hex and is not considered to be retreating.

4.B.7.b. Q: If the PA galleys attack a dragoon (3-0), which odds column do they use?                                            
A: Well, you are right, they don't have a gun factor. Since they don't have a prayer in the contest either (pistols and carbines vs. 12 and 18 pdrs.) something should reflect this, and at least make them abandon the hex. So I suppose we should give them a .5 gf for odds generation. The same for militia units (which are different from a militia force). 

4.B.7.e. Q: How are floating batteries destroyed?

A: Same as ships and galleys when they take a hit. But unlike ships and galleys, when they're done for, they're done for and don't come back (there's only two of them represented by the counter; the "Montgomery" and the "Arnold" as I remember, named for the heroes of the Canadian misadventure the year before). Like the US navy counter, it only has one shot. But unlike it, if it gets grounded or whatever it doesn't get captured, but is destroyed.

4.B.7.e. Optional:  Ships can only attack units on land if the hexes have a shared shoreline.  Example:  If a squadron of ships occupies hex 3609, it could attack land units in hexes 3608, Chester, 3709, 3610, Billingsport, but not hex 3508.  Nor could a land unit in hex 3508 obstruct the movement of ships on the river.  Rephrased, one could also say that ships couldn’t attack lands units in hexes that do not have a shoreline.  Thus a squadron in hex 3608 could not attack a unit in hex 3507 even though the units, like the hexes, are adjacent.  I’ve made this optional since the look of the map in conjunction with its scale makes it appear that cannon can shoot much farther than was actually possible then.  Adopt it if you wish.

5.A.3 Q: Rule 5.A.3 mentions that to pursue, the moving force must have a MP greater than the shaken force. Is this the printed MP, or one affected by weather (i.e. fog). Therefore a MP=6 COULD NOT brush aside and pursue a shaken force. Is this correct?
A: I’d go with the modified movement value. This makes fog more significant and confusing.

8.0 REORGANIZATION PHASE
8.A.2. Q: It looks like as replacements are brought in, the Brits can simply assign some to the Depot and not to an actual combat unit?

A: Well, not exactly since they are supposed to come from "units." However, I see no reason why this would not be the case if I were to write the rules over again. 

8.B.3. Q: In Death and Desertion, if the British are doing well (the Rebel Morale Index is negative), we shift to a low-odds column and make the British the attacker -- so the British lose more than they would if the Rebel Morale Index were positive. What does this model?                    
A: Possibly a brain-fart. I had a reason when I designed it that way but I don't remember. Something about their becoming more lax with discipline once things started cruising for them? They became rather extravagant in Philadelphia during the occupation which ultimately hurt their cause. 

10.0 VICTORY

Adjusting The Rebel Morale Index

For ease of reference I’ve collected all the modifiers to the Rebel Morale Index below.

4.A.12.a: 
Successfully Plundering Stores…..-
1     

4.B.6.a.1: 
A Crown unit Shatters…….……..+
1*

4.B.6.a.2: 
A Crown unit Surrenders………..+
2*

   
A Rebel unit Surrenders………….-
1

4.B.7.e.4: 
A Crown ship Explodes……….....+
1

8.C: 
The Accumulated Crown Casualty 

            
Track is emptied…………………+
1

11.33.3: 
Sir William Howe is Captured…..+
1
11.41: 
Reading is Foraged………………-
2

11.42.c: 
Philadelphia is Foraged……….....-
1
* If a Crown unit shatters and surrenders these should be considered mutually exclusive with a maximum adjustment of +2 to the RMI.

11.0 VARIOUS & SUNDRY REGULATIONS

11.1 Q: What happens if the Colonial player captures (“forages”) the British depot?

A: Good question! Wrecking the depot is one of those things too horrible to contemplate (and, thus, I seem to have failed to do so in the rulebook). It's about as close to automatic victory as a Rebel player is going to get since it makes it virtually impossible in the smaller campaigns (without the fleet) for the Crown to continue to operate. But wrecking the depot is also something that doesn't happen simply because you occupy the hex it is in. Washington took Princeton in the actual campaign, but didn't have time to wreck it or carry its goods away. So, like Reading and Philadelphia, the depot hex has to be foraged in order to be wrecked or carted off. How do Rebels forage? Let's say they have to sit there for one full pulse doing nothing but specifically "wrecking the depot." This awards the Rebel player 1 Morale Point. The depot would have to be reestablished. To do this the Heavy sail counter would have to be adjacent to a land hex with a port symbol, then roll two dice and count that many days forward on the Game Turn Spiral and place the depot counter there. When that day arrives it becomes active once again in the new, designated hex. Also, immediately give the Americans a positive morale shift of 1. It should go without saying that the designated hex would have to be occupied by a British force (even a minimal non-dragoon force such as the 42nd Foot) the entire time the depot counter was on the spiral. Of course, until it is once again active the Baggage train is also inactive.
12.0 SCENARIOS

Regarding the RMI in the Brandywine & Paoli scenarios: Up until, and including the battle of Brandywine, it should be +1 in the Rebel favor. But, of course, Washington really got thumped there, so after Brandywine it should be neutral (or in the "0" position) up through and including Paoli. Then, after Paoli Howe plundered a significant cache at Valley Forge and got another morale point. So for the Germantown scenario it should be -1. Germantown was another major defeat for the Rebels so it should drop again to -2 for Redbank. Now, Redbank was a huge victory (as summarized in the HC) in which the Rebels gain 2 points, so it's back up to neutral. But then Mifflin and Mercer fall, and the fleet can make it to Philadelphia... so for the Whitemarsh scenario it's back down to -1. And that's the long and short of the whole campaign (though another plundered cache could have tilted it another -1 by Valley Forge). 

Note that the above is optional, in that the rules say the RMI for the scenarios is "not applicable" meaning you'd skip it in step 4.B.2.6.) 

Q: Which unit is the Light Infantry referred to in the scenario set-ups?

A: This is the brigade commanded by Lt. Col. Abercrombie.  It consists of the 1st and 2nd Battalions of converged light infantry companies.

12.1 The Philadelphia Campaign

Q: When placing the Assembly counter, does it have to be within the movement allowance of the units involved, or anywhere on the board?

A: Anywhere on the board.

Q: If out of command Rebel forces move to Assembly, must they expend their full movement potential in doing so, that is, until they are adjacent to the Assembly marker? 

A: No. They may expend some, none or all of their MP. 

Optional Rule: The movement potential of every Rebel unit that moves to Assembly is determined by a die roll. Immediately prior to moving the unit, the Rebel player rolls the die. The resulting number is the movement potential for that unit. Modifiers: +2 if the force is commanded by Greene or Wayne (they may exceed their printed MP if a ‘5’ or '6' is rolled). The Rebel player may not apply this option to only Greene’s or Wayne’s forces, but must roll for each unit moving to assembly that turn.

Q: What was the historical assembly hex for the Americans? I was thinking of using Chester but wasn't sure if I was going too far forward or not forward enough?                                                                                                                                          
A: It would have been the White Clay Creek position, hexes 4304 through 4503 or thereabouts. But Washington may have just said the far side of, or south side of Wilmington in his orders, or even Newark, or the road to Newark (King's Highway); intending to snag them as they approached.

13.1 The Ten Crucial Days
Q: Can the British move the depot?
A: There aren't many places to go with it. Wrecking the depot wouldn’t end the scenario since Crown reinforcements receive a free Action Chit for their turn of entry. Thus, they can banzai onto the map and slam any Rebel unit silly enough to hang around (of course Washington beat feet to Morristown in the actual situation). 

13.3 Cooch’s Bridge

Q: Before playing the Cooch's Bridge scenario I need two clarifications: a) The Rebel player wins if he yields a real Crown loss. For determining real losses you need the Rebel Morale Index for any column shifts. But what is the RMI - the scenario instructions say that it is not applicable? b) The scenario set-up says that Lord Sterling's Division is only mentioned for historical interest. I don't understand why. The division is, like Green's Division, in command and could counterattack with Washington. Am I missing something?
A: Actually everything listed below Alexander's division should be considered "For Historical Interest Only." I recommend you play the scenario once as is, that is, with the FHIO units frozen, and, once with them unfrozen as a "what if." There is no need to keep track of the RMI for campaign purposes since the scenario is only a single turn long. However, for modifying the dice, yes, it should be in the +1 position for the Rebels, as in the start of scenario 12.1.

13.4 The Brandywine
Rebel Deployment: Maxwell’s brigade begins the scenario in hex 4309, 4210 or 4209. If playing this scenario face to face, place dummies in the two hexes mentioned above that do not contain his actual unit, or, if playing solo, place these three counters blindly (making it a bit of a shell game as to which hex actually has his unit within it). As he had the Chester County militia with him at this time he gets one more SP than he had at Cooche's Bridge, or you can keep him at 3 SPs and add a one point PA militia unit to the mix, placing it in one of the other two hexes, making only one of the hexes occupied by a dummy. Do this blindly if going solo.
13.5 The Battle of the Clouds

Crown Deployment: The column starting in Dilworth under Howe is that of Knyphausen, not Cornwallis. 

In the campaign set-up Bland’s Dragoons are listed twice. Sheldon’s Dragoons should replace one of these. One of the New Jersey Militia units should be a Pennsylvania Militia unit.

The Battle of the Clouds: Washington made a huge blunder here. What he should have done was ensconced himself on North Valley Hill rather than South Valley Hill, and placed a great redoubt in the center of the Chester Valley around, or to the east of Whitehorse, blocking the road. With the lower fords of the Schuylkill fortified, and a flying column operating on the north bank of that river to support the militia, there'd have been a big battle for the valley, or Howe would have been forced to move his operation to the Jersey side of the Delaware and hope for the best.
13.6 The Paoli Massacre

Q: The turn consists only of the Crown’s movement phase and subsequent combat phase. 1) Can the Brits attempt Refouler? 2) Which combat chit should the Rebels use (or do you select them randomly)?                                                                             
A: 1) Yes, why not. 2) Try it both ways. That way the scenario has some variability outside of the die roll.

Q: Can someone explain how the Crown player can win the solitaire Paoli scenario? I must not understand the rules correctly, as I can't see how the Wayne division can be shattered. I can only manage a maximum of 5 losses in one movement phase (with Brush Aside combat) and one combat phase. I think to shatter Wayne, one needs to inflict 8 losses.

A: You're right. The scenario is flawed. The problem is not with your understanding of the rules. Essentially it boils down to this. Grey didn't actually command the 3rd Brigade at Paoli, but an ersatz battle-group that included highlanders, light infantry and some dragoons. So his force should have a movement potential of 7 or 8, not 6, and a morale of say 4, not 3 (though the "Surprise" rule bumps it up to at least this). Since he was known as "no flint Grey" because of the battle, I had to use his counter, but I didn't want to make him a column commander, since he never really commanded a real division of the army, like Grant or von Donop. Substituting the light brigade for the 3rd would make pursuit that much better, but I don't think it would be enough to shatter Wayne either. Making him a temporary column commander, and say adding a squadron of cavalry to his force, would add that second unit he needs for winning the "refouler" and would also give him the big bounce for pursuit in the combat round (even though he really only had maybe a dozen dragoons with him at the actual battle). But, historically, they only pursued the Penna. division to the edge of the hex; terror; etc., providing the rest of the impetus for Wayne's rout to Red Lion (stampeding Smallwood's men along the way). So I think causing the unit to become shaken and knocking off a couple of casualties is sufficient for the Brits. to claim victory. That's probably where the actual addendum should be directed. You did quite well knocking off five. In addition to "surprise" there should be a "night terror's" rule for the campaign scenarios. I almost included one but it utterly changed the character of the game... everyone acting like a bunch of Indians.

13.7 The Battle of Germantown

In the campaign set-up the New Jersey Militia unit at Haddonfield sets up in hex 2713. One of the New Jersey Militia units should be a Pennsylvania Militia unit. 
13.9 The Battle of Whitemarsh

Q: Regarding stacking, Armstrong and Greene start in the same hex with separate forces.

A: Armstrong should be on Militia Hill, hex 3318 (which is also variously called Barren Hill and Chestnut Hill; in that they all are encompassed by the hex). The printed starting hex for him is a typo!
13.10 Hypothetical Scenario: The Derby Creek Campaign
This scenario presupposes several things. First that Gates released the Northern Army when Washington ordered him to do so. Second that Greene formed these troops into an army on the Jersey side of the Delaware (as they were intended). Third that Washington heeded the advice of several of his senior commanders that Fort Mifflin had to be held. Fourth that he moved the bulk of his army south of the Schuykill in a timely manner to affect this, leaving Armstrong and most of the Pa. militia to watch the city from the north bank of the Schuylkill (and complete the fortifications in and around Whitemarsh that were to become Fort Washington.
Start: November 8th 
Finish: November 27th 
Rebel Morale Index: +2 (They had just won the double VP victory of Redbank.)

Accumulated Action Point Index: 5 
Special Rules: The ferry in hex 3113 is now a floating bridge. A player may declare it destroyed by simply occupying (ending the movement of a unit) either hex representing one of the banks of the Schuylkill River to which it connects.
If Fort Mercer is captured prior to Fort Mifflin, units in Fort Mifflin cannot recoup losses.
Special Start Restriction: Washington has the initiative on the November 8th turn.

Crown Deployment: 
Set up as per Scenario 13.9 (Exception: The 71st Foot instead begins in Chester and the Light Sail squadron in hex 3309. The brigade of British Grenadiers begins in hex 3113. The works on Province Island are not built and the Hessian Grenadiers (-3SPs) are instead in hex 3114 and may not move for the length of the scenario).

Rebel Deployment: 

Hex 3118: Armstrong and Pennsylvania Militia Force Cadwalader -1 SP (and an entrenchment under construction for one round)
Hex 3219: Pennsylvania Militia Force Reed -1 SP (and an entrenchment under construction for one round)

Hex 3318: Pennsylvania Militia force Irvine (and an entrenchment under construction for one round).

Hex 2917: Sheldon's Dragoons

Hex 2616: The Pennsylvania Navy squadron and the floating batteries of the Pennsylvania Navy

Hex 2716: One Pennsylvania Militia unit

In Fort Mifflin (hex 3213): Varnum’s Brigade

In Fort Mercer (hex 3112): Paterson’s Brigade
Between Forts Mifflin and Mercer: The cheveau de frise (note that the one at Billingsport is broken)

In Haddonfield (hex 2713) Column Greene including Brigades Glover, Poor and Learned

Hex 3209: One New Jersey Militia unit

Hex 3013: General Newcomb including Foreman's New Jersey Militia Force and two New Jersey Militia units

Hex 3012: Morgan's Rifles

Hex 2914: One New Jersey Militia unit

Hex 2615: Byrd's Dragoons

At Burlington (hex 2116): One New.Jersey Militia unit

At Claymont (hex 3807): General Caesar Rodney and 3 Delaware Militia units

At Harriton (hex 3516) Potter's Pennsylvania Militia Force

At the Geulph (hex 3517): Column Wayne including Brigade McDougall and Bland's Dragoons

At Mattson Ford (hex 3418): Column Washington including Divisions Sullivan, Alexander (-1SP), Stephens (now LaFayette), Brigade Nash (now McIntosh) and Rumney's Virginia Militia Force and General Smallwood (including three Maryland Militia units)

Hex 3713: White's Dragoons

Hex 4012: One Pennsylvania Militia unit

Hex 4110: One Pennsylvania Militia unit

Victory Conditions: 
Crown: Per the Campaign Game

Rebel: If the cheveau de fries between Forts Mifflin and Mercer is still intact at the end of the Scenario the Americans win a victory. If this is the case and Fort Mercer is still in Rebel control the Americans win a Strategic victory, if these are the case and Fort Mifflin is in Rebel control the Americans win a Decisive victory. 
ORDER OF BATTLE
Crown Forces:
Cornwallis’ Division

Light Infantry Brigade
1st and 2nd Light Battalions

Guard Brigade
1st and 2nd Guard Battalions
Grenadier Brigade
1st and 2nd Grenadier Bns 
Grey’s 3rd Brigade
15th, 17th, 42nd, 44th 
Agnew’s 4th Brigade
33rd, 37th, 46th, 64th 
Knyphausen’s Division

Hessian Chasseur Brigade
Hessian Jagers, Queen’s Rangers, Ferguson’s Rifles

Donop’s Hessian Grenadier Bde
Linsingen’s 1st, Lengerke’s 2nd and Minnegerode’s 3rd Grenadier Battalions
Stirn’s Hessian Musketeer Bde
Leib, Mirbach, Donop and Loos’ Combined Musketeer
Grant’s Division

Vaughn’s 1st Brigade
4th, 23rd, 28th, 49th 

Grant’s 2nd Brigade
5th, 10th, 27th, 40th, 55th
Reinforcements

Lewis’ 5th Brigade
7th, 26th, 63rd 
Trenton Scenario
Rall’s HessianMusketeer Bde
Rall Grenadier, Lossberg and Knyphausen Fusiliers

Donop’s Hessian Grenadier Bde
Linsingen’s 1st, Block’s 2nd (Lengerke-1777) and Minne- gerode’s 3rd Grenadier Bns.
5th Brigade (Leslie’s 2nd Bde)
5th, 28th, 35th, 49th 
2nd Bde (Mawhood’s 4th Bde)
17th, 40th, 55th 

1st Brigade 
1st Guard Bn, 71st (2 bns), Koehler’s 4th Grenadier Bn.

Light Brigade 
1st and 2nd Light Battalions

Grenadier Brigade
1st and 2nd Grenadier Bns.



Rebel Forces:
Continental Army

Green’s Division


Muhlenberg’s 1st VA Bde
1st, 5th, 9th, 13th VA


Weeden’s 2nd VA Bde
2nd, 6th, 10th, 14th VA,             


Stewart’s PA
Stephen’s Division


Woodford’s 3rd VA Bde
3rd, 7th, 11th, 15th VA


Scott’s 4th VA Bde
4th, 8th, 12th, Grayson’s,


Patton’s VA

Sullivan’s Division



Smallwood’s 1st MD Bde
1st, 3rd, 5th, 6th MD, Delaware


Sullivan’s 2nd MD Bde
2nd, 4th, 7th MD, Hazen’s 2nd Canadian, German Bn 

Wayne’s Division



Hartley’s 1st PA Bde
1st, 2nd, 7th, 10th, Hartley’s PA


Humpton’s 2nd PA Bde
4th, 5th, 8th, 11th PA

Alexander’s Division



Conway’s 3rd PA Bde
3rd, 6th, 9th, 12th, Spencer’s PA


Maxwell’s NJ Bde
1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th NJ

Nash’s North Carolina Brigade
1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th, 8th, 9th NC
Maxwell’s Light Infantry Bde
Light Bn, Chester Cnty Militia

Reinforcements

McDougall’s Connecticut Bde
4th, 5th, 8th Conn
Varnum’s Rhode Island Bde
9th, 11th RI

Poor’s New Hampshire Bde
1st, 2nd, 3rd NH, 2nd, 4th NY
Patterson’s 3rd Mass Bde
10th, 11th, 12th, 14th Mass
Learned’s 4th Mass Bde
2nd, 8th, 9th Mass

Glover’s 2nd Mass Bde
1st, 4th, 13th, 15th Mass

Morgans’s Rifle Corps
Rifle Regt.
McDougall’s and Varnum’s Brigades were reassigned to Washington’s army on Sept 14, Poor’s Brigade on Oct 20, Patterson’s and Learned’s Brigades on Oct 27 and Glover’s Brigade on Nov 7. Huntington’s 2nd Conn Brigade (1st, 7th Conn) was also reassigned on Sept 14, but does not show up in the game. On Oct 11 McDougall’s brigade was disbanded with the 5th Conn going to Huntington’s Brigade and the 4th and 8th Conn going to Varnum’s Brigade. 

Trenton Scenario
Division Sullivan (Sargent’s Brigade)




13th Continental Regt (Reed’s Mass)



16th Continental Regt (Sargent’s Mass) (Later 8th Mass)



Ward’s Conn Bn



6th Bn Conn State Troops  




Gansevoort’s 1st New York Regt 



3rd New York Regt

Glover’s Brigade



3rd Continental Regt. (Learned’s Mass) (Later 4th Mass)



14th Continental Regt. (Glover’s Marblehead, Mass)



19th Continental Regt (Webb’s Conn.) (Later 7th Conn)



23rd Continental Regt. (Bailey’s Mass) (Later 2nd Mass)


26th Continental Regt. (Baldwin’s Mass) (Later 9th Mass)

St. Clair’s Brigade



2nd Continental Regt (Reed’s NH) (Later 3rd NH)



5th Continental Regt (Stark’s NH) (Later 1st NH)



8th Continental Regt (Poor’s NH) (Later 2nd NH)



15th Continental Regt (Paterson’s Mass) (Later 1st Mass)

Note: During the Princeton Campaign Sargent's, Glover’s and St. Clair’s Brigades were merged into one brigade under St. Clair.

Division Greene (de Fermoy’s Brigade)



Hausseger’s Penn-Md Rifle Bn (German Bn)



1st Continental Regt (Hand’s Rifle Regt)

Alexander’s Brigade



Read’s 1st Virginia Regt



Weedon’s 3rd Virginia Regt



Haslet’s Delaware Regt



Miles’ Pennsylvania State Rifle Regt


Stephen’s Brigade



Elliot’s 4th Virginia Regt 



Scott’s 5th Virginia Regt



Buckner’s 6th Virginia Regt


Mercer’s Brigade



20th Continental Regt (Durkee’s Conn) (Later 3rd Conn)



27th Continental Regt. (Hutchinson’s MA) (Later 5th MA)



Bradley’s Battalion Conn State Troops



Smallwood’s 1st Maryland Regt



Stephenson’s Md-Va Rifle Regt

Hitchcock’s Brigade



4th Continental Regt (Nixon’s Mass) (Later 6th Mass)


9th Continental Regt (Varnum’s RI) (Later 1st RI)


11th Continental Regt (Hitchcock’s RI) (Later 2nd RI)


12th Continental Regt (Little’s Mass)


Lippett’s Rhode Island Regt
COMBAT UNITS
Crown Forces:

British 

Vaughn’s 1st Brigade
 7
3
6
Grant’s 2nd Brigade
(8)
3
6

Grey’s 3rd Brigade
 8
3
6
Agnew’s 4th Brigade
 7
3
6
Lewis’ 5th Brigade
10
3
6 
Stirling’s 42nd 
 3
4
6
Campbell’s 71st 
 5
4
6
Mathew’s Guard
 5
5
6
Monckton’s Grenadiers
 6
4
6
Abercromby’s Light Infantry
 6
4
7
16th Light Dragoons (x3)
 1
3
8
17th Light Dragoons (x2)
 1
3
8
Hessian

Von Donop’s Grenadiers
(7)
4
6
Stirn’s Musketeers
11
4
6
Chasseurs
 5
3
7
Von Rall’s Musketeers (T)
 7
4
6
Rebel Forces

Continental Army

Greene’s Va Division
(9)
3
6
Stephen’s Va Division
 8
2
6
Sullivan’s De/Md Division
(7)
2
6
Wayne’s Pa Division
(8)
2
6
Alexander’s Pa/NJ Division
 9
2
6
Nash’s NC Brigade
 4
2
6
Maxwell’s Light Brigade
 4
3
7
McDougall’s Ct Brigade
 5
2
6
Varnum’s Ct/RI Brigade
 5
3
6
Poor’s NH/NY Brigade
 4
2
6
Patterson’s Ma Brigade
 5
2
6
Learned’s Ma Brigade
 3
2
6
Glover’s Ma Brigade
 6
3
6
Morgan’s Light Infantry
 1
4
7
Bland’s 1st Light Horse (Va)
 1
2
8
Sheldon’s 2nd Light Horse (Ct)
 1
2
8
Byrd’s 3rd Light Horse (Va)
 1
2
8
White’s 4th Light Horse (Pa)
 1
2
8
St. Clair’s Pa Brigade (T)
 2
2
6
Mercer’s Ma Brigade (T)
 2
2
6

Hitchcock’s Ct/RI Brigade (T)
 3
3
6
Militia
Forman’s NJ Militia
 4
1
6
Potter’s Pa Militia Brigade
 4
1
6
Irvine’s Pa Militia Brigade
 4
1
6
Reed’s Pa Militia Brigade
 4
1
6
Cadwalader’s Militia Brigade
 5
1
6
Rumney’s Va Militia Brigade
 4
1
6
NJ Militia (x5)
 2
1
6
Pa Militia (x3)
 2
1
6
Md Militia (x3)
 2
1
6
De Militia (x3) 
 2
1
6
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